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GENERAL TERMS &.CONDITIONS
REQUEST FOR QUOTATION (RFQ) AND REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP)

1. Awards will be made in the best interest of the State of West Virginia.

2. The State may accept or reject in part, or in whole, any bid.

3. Prior to any award, the apparent successful vendor must be properly registered with the Purchasing Division
and have paid the required $125 fee. . ' ' :

4. All services performed or goods delivered under State Purchase Order/Contracts are fo be continued for the
term of the Purchase Order/Contracts, contingent upon funds being appropriated by the Legislature or otherwise-
being made available. In the event funds are not appropriated or otherwise available for these services or goods
this Purchase Order/Contract becomes void and of no effect after June 30. _ '

5. Payment may only be made after the delivery and acceptance of goods or services.

6. Interest may be paid for late payment in accordance with the West Virginia Code. o

7. Vendor preference will be granted upon written request in accordance with the West Virginia Code.

8. The State of West Virginia is exempt from federal and state taxes and will not pay or reimburse such taxes.

* 9. The Director of Purchasing may cancel any Purchase Order/Contract upon 30 days written notice to the seller.
10. The laws of the State of West Virginia and the Legislative Rules of the Purchasing Division shall govern the
purchasing process.

11. Any reference to automatic renewal is hereby deleted. The Contract may be renewed only upon mutual written
agreement of the parties. '

12. BANKRUPTCY: In the event the vendor/contractor files for bankruptcy protection, the State may deem -
this contract null and void, and terminate such contract without further order. ' :

13, HIPAA BUSINESS ASSOCIATE ADDENDUM: The West Virginia State Government HIPAA Business Associate
Addendum (BAA), approved by the Attorney General, is available online at www.state.wv.us/admin/purchase/vrc/hipaa.htm
and is hereby made part of the agreement. Provided that the Agency meets the definition of a Cover Entity
(45 CFR §160.103) and will be disclosing Protected Health Information (45 CFR §1 60.103) to the vendor.

14. CONFIDENTIALITY: The vendor agrees that he or she will not disclose to anycne, directly or indirectly, any such
personally identifiable information or other confidential information gained from the agency, unless the individual who is
~ the subject of the information consents to the disclosure in writing or the disclosure is made pursuant to the agency's
policies, procedures, and rules. Vendor further agrees to comply with the Confidenfiality Policies and Information
Security Accountability Requirements, set forth in http:/Avww.state wv.us/admin/purchase/ptivacy/noticeConfidentiality pdf.

15. LICENSING: Vendors must be licensed and in good standing in accordance with any and all state and local laws and
requirements by any state or local agency of West Virginia, including, but.not limited to, the Wast Virginia Secretary
of State's Office, the West Virginia Tax Depariment, and the West Virginia Insurance Commission. The vendor must
provide all necessary releases to obtain information to enable the director or spending unit fo
verify that the vendor is licensed and in good standing with the above entities.

16. ANTITRUST: In submitting a bid to any agency for the State of West Virginia, the bidder offers and agrees that
if the bid is accepted the bidder will convey, sell, assign or transfer to the State of West Virginia all rights, tile and interest
in and to all causes of action it may now or hereafter acquire under the antitrust laws of the United States and the State of
West Virginia for price fixing and/or unreasonable restraints of trade relating to the particular commodities or services
purchased or acquired by the State of West Virginia. Such assignment shall be made and bacome effective at the time the
purchasing agency tenders the initial payment to the bidder. .

| certify that this bid is made without prior understanding, agreement, or connection with any corporation, firm, limited
liability company, parinership, or person or entity submitling a bid for the same material, supplies, equipment or
services and is in all respects fair and without collusion or Fraud. | further cerlify that | am authorized to sign
the certification on behalf of the bidder or this bid.

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS
1. Use the quotation forms provided by the Purchasing Division. Complete all sections of the quotation form.

2. ltems offered must be in compliance with the specifications. Any deviation from the specifications must be clearly
indicated by the bidder. Alternates offered by the bidder as EQUAL to the specifications must be clearly
defined. A bidder offering an alternate shouid attach complete specifications and literature to the bid. The
Purchasing Division may waive minor deviations fo specifications. : : . :
3. Unit prices shall prevail in case of discrepancy. Al quotations are considered F.O.B. destination unless altemnate
shipping tefms are clearly identified in the quotation. :

4. All quotations must be delivered by the bidder to the office listed below prior to the date and time of the bid
opening. Failure of the bidder to deliver the quotations.on time will result in bid disqualifications: Depariment of
Administration, Purchasing Division, 2019 Washington Street East, P.O. Box 50130, Charleston, WV 25305-0130

5. Communication during the solicitation, bid, evaluation or ‘award periods, except through the Purchasing Division,
is strictly prohibited (W.Va. C.S.R. §148-1-6.6).

Rev. 12/15/08
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Addendum #1
EHS11031

Vendor Question 1: .
We want 1o be sure we correctly understand requirements outiined in Vendor Requirements,
item 2. We have read these items and we understand you are requesting the following:

Vendor Requirements, item 2, Bullet 1: We understand this requirement means the vendor
must provide 10-12 examples of reports, letters, emall, eic. demonstrating the vendor has
provided direct assistance to 10-12 water systems over the last two years and these must
demonstrate each of the key staff have provided water system technical, managerial or
technical assistance; a total of 10-12 examples.

OEHS Response to Vendor Question 1: .
The specifications require vendor 1o provide 10 to 12 examples of vendor a331stance in
technical, managerial, and/or financial areas to different water systems within the last two years.

Vendor Question 2:
We want to be sure we correctly understand requirements outlined in Vendor Requirements,
ftem 2. We have read these items and we understand you are requesting the following:

Vendor Requirements, Item 2, Bullet 2, We understand this requirement means the vendor
must provide 10-12 examples of specific resource (e.g., training manuals, equipment, software,
articles, trade publications, etc.) the vendor has provided, through its key staff, to 10-12 water
systems over the last two years; a total of 10-12 examples.

- OEHS Response to Vendor Question 2:
The specifications require vendor to provide 10to 12 examples of resources used by vendor to
assist different water systems within the last two years.

Vendor Question 3:
We want to be sure we correctly understand requirements outlined in Vendor Requirements,
ltem 2. We have read these items and we understand you are requesting the following:

Vendor Requirements, Item 2, Bullet 3: We understand this requirement means the vendor
must provide a resume for each key staff member. Each staff member resume must
demonstrate 2 years experience providing on-site visits assisting water systems in either the
technical, managerial, or financial area. Additionally, all the vendor’'s resumes collectively must
show 2 years experience providing technical, managerlal and financial assistance (total 6
years). Do we correctly understand what you are requiring j for these three bullets? If not, would
you please clarify what is wanted.

OEHS Response to Vendor Question 3:

In order to confirm that vendor’s key staif has the ability and knowledge to assist commumty
water systems in technical, managerial and financial areas of their operahons vendor must
prowde resumes for all key staff members. Resumes must depict a minimum of two years
experience for each key staff member in the technical, managerial, or financial areas while
ensuring that the minimum two year experience requirement is satisfied in all three categories.
For example, one key staff person could have a minimum of two years experience in technical
capacity. Another key siaff person could have a minimum of two years experience in
managerial capacity and one other person could have a minimum of two years expetience in the
financial area. Under this example, vendor satisfies the requirement of a minimum of two years
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experience in all three capacity areas. Another example that will satisfy the minimum
experience requirement is one key staff person could have two years experience in the
technical area and an additional two years experience in the managerial capacity (4 years),
while another key staff parson has two years experience in the financial area. One other
example that will satisfy the minimum expetience requirement is one key staff person that has a
minimum of two years experience in all three capacity areas (6 or more years).

Vendor Question 4:

The description of Deliverable 3 includes a raequirement for Quarterly written updates/reports.
However, the cost/bid sheet does not inciude these 12 reports in the list of deliverables.
Therefore, there is no place in the Bid Price Sheet to incorporate these costs. Where does
OEHS want us to include this cost in the Bid Price Sheet? Does OEHS want to modify the Bid
Price Sheet to include this required deliverable?

OEHS Response to Vendor Question 4:

As reflected under “Life of Contract” in the specifications, contract will extend for one year upon
award. Contract may be renewed annually for two additional one year periods upon mutual
written consent of OEHS and vendor, but renewals are not guaranteed. There are four quarterly
reports required in Year 1 of the contract. If the contract is renewed for a second year, four
quarterly reports will be required for Year 2. If the contract is renewed for a third year, four
quarterly reports will be required for Year 3. OEHS does not want to modify the Bid Price Shest
to include the required quarterly written updates/reports outlined under Deliverable 3. Vendor
should be aware of all requirements outlined under Deliverable 3 and incorporate ¢osts for
completing all of the requirements of the Deliverable in the unit and total cost on the Bid Price
Sheet.

Vendor Question 5:

The description of Deliverable 3 includes a written report requirement for every CWS visited be
submitted to OEHS within 14 days. However, the cost/bid sheet does not mention these reports.
Therefore, there is no place specified in the Bid Price Sheet to incorporate these costs. Does
OEHS want us to include this cost in the Bid Price Sheet Deliverable 3 scheduling, conducting,
and cormpleting reviews of Community Water Systems? Does OEHS want to modify the Bid
Price Sheet to include this required deliverable?

OEHS Response 1o Vendor Question 5;
OEHS does not want to modify the Bid Price Sheet to include the requ1red written report for

-every CWS visited. Vendor should be aware of all requirements outlined under Deliverable 3

and incorporats costs for completing all of the requirements of the Deliverable in the unit and
total cost on the Bid Price Sheet.

Vendor Question 6:

We know from experience how difficult it can be contacting water systems and setting up
evaluations, especially when they involve technical, managerial, and financial evaluation. Such
gvaluations commonly invoive 3 or 4 separate individuals from the water system. Our
experience has also shown many small water systems are difficult, and sometimes impossible,
to contact. When working for OEHS, Mr, Watson’s Capacity Development Program staff
sometimes required numerous attempts over several weeks to schedule or receive refusal for
water system assessment meetings. RFQ Deliverabie 2 assumes 20 CWSs/year be used when
developing the non-participating CWS bid price. However, the RFQ does not provide any
guidance or assumptions regarding how much vendor effort should be expended attempting to
contact a CWS before referring the CWS to OEHS. This effort could involve a few phone calls
over a couple days to numerous phone calls, lefters, emails, etc. extending several weeks (e.g.,
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" one or two hours effort up to approximately a day). It is important the bidding vendors

understand the degree of effort OEHS desires when developing a unit ptice fo_r this deliverable.

When unable to contact or schedule an on- site WYWSET review, how much effort does OEHS

expect from the vendor before the CWS is referred to OEHS?

-

We have assumed OEHS wanis the vendor to attempt 5-6 times, by phone or email only, to
contact a CWS and schedule an on-site WYWSET visit. Is this a proper assumption or does
QEHS expect more or less vendor effort before forwarding the CWS to OEHS as refusing to
participate?

OEHS Response to Vendor Question 6:

OEHs expects vendor to attempt verbal contact with the chief operator a minimum of five times
and the manager of the CWS a minimum of five times over a period of four weeks before
referring the system to OEHS. If vendor is unable to make verbal contact with CWS, then the

_ aftempted contact names and dates of attempted contact must be sent to OEHS for follow up

with the CWS. |f verbal contact is made and both individuals decline the offer to complete a

survey, then the contact names, dates of contact, and a brief summary of the discussions

(including reasons for refusal) must be sent to the OEHS for follow-up with the CWS.
Vendor Question 7:

Are all proposed Key Staff required to be at the initial project planning meeting?

OEHS Response to Vendor Question 7:

No. All proposed Key Staff are not required to be at the initial project planning meeting.
Vendor Question 8:

Are proposed Key Staff required to do the on-site visits with each water system?

OEHS Response to Vendor Question 8:

_At least one key staff person is required to do the on-site visit with a water system.

Vendor Question 9: '

Some survey questions do not apply to all systems. In other cases, the appropriate personnel
may be unavailable to answer questions during the site visit. What is the maximum number of
survey questions for each system that can be left unanswered and still be approved by DHHR?
(For example if a system is not able to answer 10 questions out of the 59, would that be
acceptable to DHHR?)

OEHS Response to Vendor Question 9:

OEHS expeacts all appropriate questions to be answered for a CWS. A list of required
documents must be reviewed with the CWS (and sent 1o them) during the contact 1o set up the
date of the on-site visit for the survey. These lists will be reviewed during the development of
the work plan. Vendor may elect to receive data or documents from the CWS after the site visit.
However, vendor is responsible for obtaining answers to questions before a survey is
considered complete. A question may be answered “Not Applicable”.

" Vendor Question 10:

What is the expectation for post meeting foliow-up with each syétem to obtain additional
information that was not available during the on-site meeting? For example, is additional follow
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up required to obtain answers to the 10 unanswered questtons before the reporl canbe
approved by DHHR'? . .

OEHS Response to Vendor Questlon i0: o \

Vendor is responsible fer obtaining answers to all appropnate questlons related to CWSs before
reports can be approved by DHH R/BPH/OEHS. h‘ questlons are not appropriate to a CWS, they
may be answered "Not Apphcable"

Vendor Question 11;
Must the survey results to be printed on-site for each water system be printed in color'?

OEHS Response to Vendor Question 11: a
Yes The on-site printed copies for the CWS must be in co!or

Vendor Question 12:
Are hard copy report deliverables requ;red in addition to ¢he elactronic Microscft Word
deliverable to DHHR’-’ If so, how many copies of each report does DHHR require? b

OEHS Response 1o Vendor Question 12:
DHHR/BPH/OEHS will require only one hard copy of each report in addition to the electronic
Microsoft Word version.
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TETRATECH

Jon C. Ludwig
Director, Water Resources Group

803 Quarrier Street, Suite 400, Charleston, WV 25301
Tel 304.414.0054 Fax 304.720.2334

jerludwig@retratech.com wwwittwater.com

WV RCAP
A program of WV CAP

Richard Watson
Technical Assistance Provider

PO Box 33
Dry Fork, West Virginia 26263

304-866-4260

rwatson121@frontiernet.net

WV RCAP
A program of WV CAP

Jeff Owens
Rural Development Advisor

12C Sunset View
Bridgeport, WV 26330

u iy < Trogmm

304-842-9287
304-842-5727
jowens@westvirginia.com

WV RCAP
A program of WV CAP

Nettie Harper
Technical Assistance Provider

12C Sunset View
Bridgeport, WV 26330

304-B42-WATR (9287)
304-842-5727
nharper@citynet.net



